Questions/Answers to RFQ NND11376997Q
HABS/HAER Recordation

Q1:

Is the due date for the HABS/HAER recordation of the Dryden Flight Research Center July 1st of 2011?  This seems like a very short time in which to produce a document that fully describes the history and operation of the facility.  Are there previous NRHP nominations or other compiled histories from which to borrow text?

A1:
The due date for the HABS/HAER recordation is July 1, 2011.  There is a wealth of information available to complete this task. The major task will be compiling existing information into a Section 106 submission. There may be some original research required to fill in gaps but this will be minimal, if any. The major resource will be the “Survey and Evaluation of NASA-owned Historic Facilities and Properties In the Context of the U.S. Space Shuttle Program”, which contains an extensive history leading up to the document’s preparation date of November, 2007. There are also NASA monographs and some written histories of the Shuttle program to provide additional background. Note that the focus should be the MDD structure itself.

Q2:

Will any new photography be needed of the MMD in addition to the existing historical photos?

A2:

No new photography is required from the contractor. If the contractor identifies a need for new photographs, our in-house photographers will provide them.
Q3:

Will I need to reproduce the existing photographs with my own equipment and materials on site, or will reproductions be supplied by the NASA DFRC Print and Photo Lab?

A3:

NASA will use in-house resources to reproduce all photographs.
Q4:

Does the submittal of a cost quote via the NAIS web site, with related on-line transmitted information regarding firm, etc., constitute the full response?  Or, do you require a formal response packet to the RFQ/RFP, including company background and key staff bios, our proposed tasks to complete the project, detailed budget, list of previous projects, references, etc.?  If you desire this additional information, can it be transmitted with the quote via the NAIS web site, or can it be emailed directly to you?
A4:

Submittal of the on-line quote is required through the NAIS system.  Contractor may upload to the NAIS website any supporting documentation they wish to include for NASA to make a best value determination.

Q5:

The SOW states that "no new drawing will be required," will NASA want existing drawings/as-built drawings to be reformatted to HABS/HAER template borders, etc.?
A5:
Yes.
Q6:

What is the approximate size/length of the narrative text to summarize the historical background and physical description of the MDD?
A6:

Unknown. Note much of it will be copy/paste from existing documents with only minor new material, primarily updates to the 2007 narrative and other previously generated information that we will provide. Note that the major task will be assembling existing information, editing, formatting, etc., into the format needed to meet the HAER requirements. 
Q7:

Will this HAER documentation be ultimately transmitted to DOI/NPS HABS/HAER office?  Will such transmittal be the responsibility of NASA or contractor?
A7:

This will be a Section 106 submittal to Cal SHPO. NASA will do all transmittals and SHPO consultation, including with the interface with NPS if needed.

Q8:

Photos:  the SOW states a minimum of 50 photographs is required, but that some/many/all (?) can be derived from negatives and prints currently in the NASA DFRCs Photo Laboratory and archives.  Does the project require the production of HABS/HAER quality, archival photos of the existing views of the MDD structure, in addition to production of archival prints & negatives from existing photos and negatives?
A8:

The MDD is considered “export controlled” and so no high-quality photos are allowed to be released and are not part of this task. 
Q9:

Item #5 of the Deliverables section mentions completing “California Master Site File Historic Structure form,” which, as far as I know, is not an official California form (although the state of Florida does have a similarly-named form that they use to record and evaluate historic properties).  It is our expectation that the deliverable will only be a HABS/HAER Level II report produced according to the appropriate Secretary of Interior / NPS guidelines.  Is this correct?     

A9:
Yes, please follow SI/NPS guidelines, using any modification required by Cal SHPO.
Q10:

As we read the Statement of Work, consultation with the National Park Service (Heritage Documentation Program) is not required for this project.   

A10:
Correct - NASA will do all consultation, including with the NPS if needed.

Q11:

To confirm, the photographs included in the report will only be reproductions of existing photographs at Dryden, and will not include new photographs of the resource?

A11:
Correct - no new photography is required from the contractor.
Q12:

In regards to the portion of the Statement of Work that reads, “The report to the CA SHPO will include copies of existing videos demonstrating the MDD during the period of significance,” we assume that these videos will be prepared or supplied by Dryden for us to include in the deliverables package to SHPO.  Is this correct?

A12:
NASA will produce/supply the videos and assemble the final SHPO submission package. This will include a CD that includes operational videos, interviews, photos, and the HAER documentation that will be provided by the contractor. However, the ultimate audience of the CD is the public, so NASA may submit the HAER separately as well. The SOW requests only the HAER portion of the submission. Therefore, the contractor’s deliverable is a SHPO-ready submission product.

